Public Document Pack

AGENDA
Committee

-

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time

-

Wednesday, 29 January 2020 at 6.30 pm

Venue

-

Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road,
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), J R Astill, A C Beal, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman),
C J T H Brewis, A C Cronin, R Grocock, J L King, J D McLean, N H Pepper,
P A Redgate, G P Scalese, A C Tennant, S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only
from members who are not on the Cabinet. Substitutions apply for individual
meetings only.

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn their mobile telephones to
silent

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE
Date: 21 January 2020

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

Page 1

AGENDA
1

Apologies for absence.

2

Minutes To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 12 November 2019 (copy
enclosed).

3

Declaration of Interests. Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.

4

Questions asked under Standing Order 6

5

Tracking of Recommendations To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel.

6

Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.

7

Key Decision Plan To note the current Key Decision Plan

(Pages
17 - 20)

8

Q3 2019-20 Performance Overview Report To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1
October 2019 – 31 December 2019 (report of the Portfolio Holder
Governance and Customer enclosed).

(Pages
21 - 40)

9

Empty Homes Following the Q2 2019-20 Performance Overview Report considered at
the last meeting, members will be provided with a verbal update on the
splitting of Empty Homes performance measures.

10

Review of Implemented Planning Decisions To consider the updated record of findings from the tour (report of the
Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages
41 - 44)

11

Industrial Unit Update To provide members with an update on the current use of the Industrial
Units (report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages
45 - 50)

12

Public Toilet Reports To provide an update to the Performance Monitoring Panel on the
progress of feasibility works concerning the replacement or
refurbishment of the public toilets (report of the Portfolio Holder for
Communities and Facilities and the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages
51 - 58)

Page 2

(Pages
5 - 16)

13

Digital Work Programme Progress update To provide an update, in the form of a presentation, on the progress of
the Council’s Digital Work Programme (report of the Portfolio Holder
Governance and Customer and the Executive Director Strategy and
Governance enclosed).

(Pages
59 - 62)

14

Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel
(report of the Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring
Officer) enclosed).

(Pages
63 - 70)

15

Untidy Sites To provide an update on untidy sites within the district (report of the
Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages
71 - 74)

(Please note that the appendix to this report is not for publication by
virtue of Paragraph 6 (Information which reveals that the authority
proposes: a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of
which requirements are imposed on a person; or b) to make an order or
direction under any enactment)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Local
Government Act 1972, and is therefore attached to this agenda as item
18.
16

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -

NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

17

To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 6 of part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act.

18

Untidy sites Appendix to the report at agenda item 15 is enclosed.

Page 3

(Pages
75 - 78)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
- 28 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 12 November
2019 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)
J R Astill
A C Beal
C J T H Brewis
A C Cronin

R Grocock
J D McLean
N H Pepper
P A Redgate

A C Tennant
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson

In Attendance: The Place Manager, the Communities Manager, the Corporate
Innovation, Change and Performance Manager, the Housing Landlord Services
Manager, the Community Safety and Enforcement Manager, the Principal Planning
Officer and the Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor J L King
Action By

27

MINUTES
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the
Performance Monitoring Panel, held on 11 September 2019 and
the minutes of the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy
Development Panel held on 16 July 2019.
The following issues were raised:





At the last meeting, it had again been requested that feedback
be provided on how many prosecutions were achieved
through the use of CCTV. Officers responded that work was
being undertaken with the Police regarding this request, and
that more qualitative information would be included within the
next update report in March 2020.
Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities update – members
asked that the information requested at the last update be
provided.
Members asked when the dilapidation schedule for the leisure
facilities would be in a form suitable for scrutiny by the Panel.
Officers responded that conversations were still ongoing with
the previous contractor, and as a result, they could not confirm
when the information would be available. The Chairman
would be provided with an update outside of meeting.

Page 5

DB

EH

- 29 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

AGREED:
a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance
Monitoring Panel held on 11 September 2019 were signed by
the Chairman as a correct record;
b) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 16
July 2019 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
28

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

29

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6
There were none.

30

TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS
The Panel was advised that a report had been presented to the
Cabinet at its meeting on 29 October 2019, which provided an
update on the progress of the recommendations of the Public
Toilet Task Group, and proposed future options.
The recommendations within the report were agreed by the
Cabinet, and would all be undertaken in full.
Officers confirmed that the recommendations had been
considered alongside another report relating to Holbeach and
Spalding Town Improvement Works.

31

ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL.
Long Term Empty Homes
The Policy Development Panel had been receiving regular
updates on the position regarding Long Term Empty Homes, the
latest update being to the meeting on 24 September 2019. As the
position on the number of long term empty homes had been quite
static, the report to the meeting in September had laid out
proposals for moving forward with regard to how information on
empty homes could be reported in the future. One of these
proposals was that, going forward, consideration of performance
be undertaken by the Performance Monitoring Panel.
The Performance Monitoring Panel considered this proposal, and

Page 6

- 30 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

the following issues arose:


Performance around empty homes appeared to have dropped
– why had this position arisen?
o Officers explained that the current target
performance indicator was linked to work
undertaken by the Private Sector Housing Team,
and did not take account of work undertaken across
the Authority as a whole (which included PSPS and
Council Tax). The Performance Indicators needed
to be re-addressed as they did not accommodate
spikes at certain times, due to other factors.
Officers commented that there was an additional
lack of clarity due to the year end Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) showing the net increase/decrease of
Council Tax receipts together with a quarterly
measure which showed the number of properties
brought back into use as a result of the work of the
officer group.



Was the objective to bring in more Council Tax revenue, or to
decrease the number of empty homes?
o Officers responded that with regard to the year-end
figures, the focus was around Council Tax receipts,
and the New Homes Bonus, and with regard to
officer intervention, the focus was on the impact that
an empty property had on the area.



How was the New Homes Bonus affected?
o Officers advised that bringing a property back into
use generated a New Homes Bonus, which was
preferable to the income brought in from Council
Tax payable on an empty property. The two distinct
areas made the information around the KPI unclear
– separate KPIs were required to make the data
clearer.



Members asked what the process was with regard to bringing
a property back into use.
o Officers advised that there was a dedicated inbox
and information on the Council’s website for
individuals to report properties, which officers would
then take forward. The Council Tax department
also provided information on empty properties, and
relevant officers would then try to determine the
reasons for the property being a long term empty
home. The Policy Development Panel would be
considering the Empty Homes Strategy in due

Page 7

- 31 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

course, but performance around KPIs was a
different issue, and the correct reporting
mechanisms had to be found.


Officers stated that the number of empty homes was very
small, that there were ad hoc procedures to deal with empty
homes, and that a policy would be brought forward in due
course to consolidate this.



Members commented that careful consideration had to be
given to the correct form KPIs should take, in order that
performance and the work undertaken by officers could be
clearly reflected. It was agreed that further information on
KPIs be provided for consideration at the next meeting of the
Panel, alongside some background information with regard to
situations and difficulties faced.

AGREED:
That with regard to Empty Homes, further information be provided
to the next meeting of the Panel around Key Performance
Indicators, and background information with regard to situations
and difficulties faced.
Joint Task Groups
Consideration was given to the future of two Task Groups that
had been set up jointly by both the Performance Monitoring Panel
and the Policy Development Panel:


Public Open Spaces Task Group – This had been a joint Task
Group which had not concluded its work. The Policy
Development Panel had suggested that this no longer be a
joint Task Group, and that the Performance Monitoring Plan
conclude the work. The Policy Development Panel would
instead establish a new Planning Design Task Group. The
Performance Monitoring Panel was in agreement with this
approach, and it was agreed that the following Panel members
be part of the new Public Open Spaces Task Group –
Councillors B Alcock, J R Astill, A C Beal, C J T H Brewis and
P A Redgate. It was also agreed that the scope be reconsidered at the first meeting of the Task Group, to be
arranged in the new year.



Leisure Facilities Task Group – This had been a joint Task
Group, and it was agreed by both Panels that it be removed
from the respective Work Programmes.

Page 8

RB,
JK

- 32 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

AGREED:
a) That the Performance Monitoring Panel continue the work of
the Public Open Spaces Task Group, and:
CM

i.

That the membership consist of Councillors B Alcock, J
R Astill, A C Beal, C J T H Brewis and P A Redgate;

ii.

That the scope be reconsidered as the first meeting of
the Task Group in the new year; and

b) That the Leisure Facilities Task Group be removed from the
Panel’s Work Programme.
32

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 29
October 2019.
AGREED:
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 29 October 2019 be noted.

33

Q2 2019-20 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for
Governance and Customer, which provided an update on how the
Council was performing for the period 1 July 2019 to 30
September 2019.
The Quarter 2 2019-20 Performance Report detailed in Appendix
A aimed to provide members, businesses and residents with an
overview of how the Council was performing against a number of
key strategic indicators. These indicators included the delivery of
frontline services, financial performance and progress made
towards achieving the overarching aims and objectives of the
Council, as set out in the Corporate Plan. In addition, the
covering report highlighted areas of improved and high
performance, and also where performance was challenged.
Areas of success included:



Significant improvement in the average re-let time for Quarter
2;
Performance relating to the time taken to respond to customer
feedback continued to perform strongly – this included
responses to Freedom of Information requests and
complaints;

Page 9

CM

- 33 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019



Performance within the Council’s customer contact centre was
very positive; There had been a decrease in the number of
reported fly tips within the District, and a decrease in the
amount of time to remove them

It was noted under areas for improvement that there had been a
total of 465 missed waste collections in Quarter 2, which equated
to 0.05% of scheduled collections.
The Panel considered the report, and the following issues were
raised:


Members commented that sickness performance was very
good and that staff should be congratulated.



Although missed waste collections was an area for
improvement, the percentage was small when measured
against the number of successful collections. Officers
commented that further investigations were needed to identify
whether these were missed collections or missed
presentations.



There were a number of points raised regarding fly tipping:
DB, CP
o Fly tips reported in the performance report were fly
tips that the Authority was responsible for clearing;
o Some members felt that the situation around fly
tipping was not improving. Other members
suggested that part of the problem was fly tippers
adding rubbish to existing waste collections, and
officers commented that although work was being
done, there was still some way to go.
o Members asked which fly tips were the responsibility
of the Authority. Officers responded that the
Authority had no duty to clear fly tipping from private
land, but would still look into these incidences and
investigate.
o Dykes and drains were major areas for fly tipping,
and officers advised that the Authority often worked
with the Internal Drainage Boards to resolve this
problem.
o Members commented that highway drains were
another area prone to fly tipping. Officers
responded that if the drains were in public
ownership, they would be cleared by the Authority.
However, safety of staff in undertaking this work
was also a consideration - there had to be a balance
between doing the work and ensuring the safety of
staff.

Page 10

- 34 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

o Improvements were required to the way in which
reporting was dealt with on-line. Although reporting
could be undertaken, there was currently no
feedback or responses provided.
o It was important that the Authority prosecuted fly
tippers wherever they could, and that this was
reported in the local press, to deter others.
o Anti-littering/fly tipping education of children from a
young age was important – could the Authority do
anything in this regard? Officers advised that the
Community Wardens were very effective in
promoting their message, and could be used in
schools. The schools themselves could be
contacted to ascertain if there was any education of
this kind already in place.




Information included within the report around customer
engagement was useful however, members requested that 12
months of data was needed on ‘contact channels by type’, for
comparison purposes.
Members commented that the digital access to performance
data was very good. Officers responded that they were
piloting real-time performance management reporting for the
future. This would mean that issues could be acted upon
immediately, rather than looking at historic information. From
the next quarter 1, trend and business analysis would be
reported to the Performance Monitoring Panel.

AGREED:
That the content of the report be noted.
(The Corporate Innovation, Change and Performance Manager
left the meeting following discussion of the above item).
34

REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTED PLANNING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Place which reported on the Review of Implemented Planning
Decisions, and requested consideration of the findings.
The tour had taken place on 5 September 2019, with morning and
afternoon sessions taking in different areas of the district. Eight
members took part and were present for the whole day. A
selection of eight residential developments were visited after prior
discussion with the Chairman of the Panel. The sites chosen
comprised both small and large-scale schemes, with some under

Page 11

RB

- 35 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

construction, and some that had been completed.
Members were provided with an information pack outlining the
background and key issues relating to each site, as well as a
block plan of the site. Verbal assistance was given on site where
necessary, and officers noted members’ feedback for each site.
A debriefing session was held after the tour to review the day, and
these conclusions were detailed within the report and Appendix A.
Members considered the information and the following issues
arose:


Those members that had attended agreed that the day had
been useful and well organised, and that it was helpful to
actually visit and see the sites, and to see the challenges that
were faced.



It was agreed that the comments detailed within Appendix A
were too much of a precis of comments made by members.
More comments on each of the sites was required – they
could be important to the findings of the tour, and more
expansion would be helpful for Planning Committee. Also, the
précising of some of the comments did not make it clear
whether they were beneficial or detrimental – they required
more explanation.



Earlier in the meeting, the Panel had been advised that the
Policy Development Panel had agreed to set up a Planning
Design Task Group - could the comments from the tour be
incorporated into its work?



Future tours should ensure that photographs were taken of the
sites viewed, so that they could be seen by those members
who could not attend. Additionally, better quality photographs
should be taken of sites when an application was submitted to
the Planning Committee.



A 3-D Computer Aided Design of what a building should look
like would be helpful in future consideration of applications.



Consideration should be given to including commercial
developments as part of future tours.



Infill plots – there was an issue with some plots where larger
properties were being build on plots that were too small for
them.

Page 12

LB, PN

CM, CP

- 36 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019



The Panel raised a number of additional issues on each of the
sites, that it did not feel had been reflected within the
appendix, and officers noted these comments.

AGREED:
a) That the report on the Review of Implemented Planning
Decisions be presented to the Planning Committee, and that
the report include fuller comments on the sites visited; and
b) That future Reviews of Implemented Planning Decisions be
undertaken on an annual basis.
(The Principal Planning Officer left the meeting following
discussion of the above item).
35

CORPORATE ENFORCEMENT UPDATE
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Place which provided members with an update on enforcement
activity.
The Council was responsible for enforcing a wide range of
legislation, with powers of enforcement usually delegated to
individual officers in the various service areas concerned.
Enforcement activity in the Council was extensive and included
planning enforcement, contraventions of building regulations,
littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned vehicles,
evictions, possessions, prohibition orders, food safety, health and
safety, licensing, noise nuisance and pollution. The activity
covered individuals, public areas, homes and businesses.
With regard to enforcement data, performance indicators created
for the current financial year commenced on 1 April 2019,
requiring all teams across the authority with enforcement
responsibilities to report on their enforcement on a quarterly
basis, and information on the first two quarters was detailed within
the report. Also detailed within the report were some enforcement
case examples, covering Fly-Tipping; Planning; a Without Notice
Injunction; and a Failure to license a House of Multiple
Occupation (HMO).
Members considered the information detailed within the report,
and the following issues were raised:


Members commented that under the Communities service
area, it would be useful for anti-social behaviour and fly-tipping
information to be broken down. Officers agreed that this

Page 13

DB

- 37 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

would be useful – an appendix could be added, to include
information for all departments to make it clearer to pick out
detail.


Members commented that with regard to informal notices, the
warning letters, prosecutions and financial penalties for
quarters 1 and 2 seemed disproportionate. Officers advised
that PSPO warning letters were now included in the numbers
within the report, which were not included within the Q1
figures.



Press publicity for enforcement work undertaken was good. It
was important that the public knew of anti-social issues, and
that they noted times, dates and incidences when reporting
them. Officers agreed, and stated that it was also important to
work with people to find the best way forward.



Members commented that feedback was frequently requested
regarding progress on a number of untidy sites–
communication regarding what was being done was
insufficient, and it thus appeared that no progress was being
made. Members were advised that work was being
undertaken on these properties however, it was felt that
communication had to improve and there needed to be a
consistent message provided. Members responded that it
may be useful to set up a Task Group to look into untidy sites,
how the Authority dealt with them, and how communication
was undertaken. A report detailing this information was
requested to the next meeting, when a decision would be
made as to whether to pursue a Task Group.

AGREED:
a) That the content of the report be noted;
b) That a further update be provided to the Performance
Monitoring Panel in six months’ time; and
c) That a report be presented to the next meeting of the Panel
providing details of untidy sites, how the Authority dealt with
them and how communication on progress was undertaken.
36

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the
Performance Monitoring Panel. The Work Programme consisted
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the

Page 14

DB

DB, SB, KB

- 38 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 12 November 2019

future Panel meetings along with proposed items for
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that
had been identified by the Panel.




Members raised the issue of the development and availability
of industrial units within the area. Holbeach, Spalding and
Crowland had good availability however, Sutton Bridge did
not. The provision that was there was in a poor state, and
many of the units were not being used for the purposes they
were set up for.
o Officers advised that the original policy relating to
industrial units had been produced in the early 2000s,
there had been some movement from its original
intentions, but that a new policy was being drafted and
would be presented in due course to the Policy
Development Panel for consideration.
Members requested that a report be provided to the next
meeting of the Panel, laying out the current situation regarding
the use of industrial units within the area, including what they
were being used for.

AGREED:
a) That the Work Programme provided by the Executive Manager
Governance be noted; and
b) That a report be provided to the next meeting of the
Performance Monitoring Panel providing information on the
current situation regarding the use of industrial units within the
area, including what they were being used for.
37

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There were none.

(The meeting ended at 8.40 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 15

AG, RH

This page is intentionally left blank

Issued – 8 January 2020

KEY DECISION PLAN

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision
is likely to be made, to:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk
The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

Page 17

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the de cision is
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period from the date of publication of
any decision.
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

1

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Agenda Item 7

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the P olicy
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Page 18

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery.

The authority is exploring the purchase
of residential property to improve
options to address housing need in the
district.

Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Health Before
30 Jan 2020

Portfolio Holder
for Place

To provide an update on potential
improvements to the Daffodil Route
between Pinchbeck Road and Johnson
Hospital utilising section 106 funding to
improve health and well being
opportunities

Cabinet 17 Mar 2020

For the Chimney repairs, repointing
and removal including Pitched roof
repairs to various council dwellings as
identified in reaching the end of their
lifespan, or the chimney is no longer
required.

Housing Landlord
Manager 28 Feb 2020

Daffodil Route
Improvements

Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

Chimney repairs,
repointing and
removal Contract

2

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

For the replacement of various types of
flat roofs to Council Dwellings,
outbuildings and garages, which have
reached the end of their lifespan and
require replacement or repairs.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager 28 Feb 2020

Flat Roof
replacement and
repairs Contract

Page 19

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor G J Taylor (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Councillor Tracey Carter – Portfolio Holder for Governance and
Customer

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel – Tuesday 29 January 2020
Cabinet – 11 February 2020

Author:

Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation, Change and Performance
Manager

Subject:

Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3 2019/20

Purpose:

To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period
1st October 2019 – 31st December 2019

Recommendation(s):
1)

1.0

To note the content of the report

Background
The Quarter 3 2019-20 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide
Members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is
performing against a number of key strategic indicators. These indicators include
the delivery of frontline services, financial performance and progress made towards
achieving the overarching aims an objectives of the Council as set out in the
Corporate Plan.
In addition the covering report will highlight areas of improved and high performance
and also where performance is challenging. Where this is the case the report will
summarise what officers are doing to address this.

2.0

Key Performance Indicators

Page 21

2.1

Performance is reported using the RAG system with green demonstrating where an
indicator is on or above target, amber where the indicator is below target but
showing an upward trend and red where an indicator is significantly below target.
Of the 16 measurable indicators the below table shows an improvement in
performance across the Council when compared with Quarter 119/20.
Indicator

3.0

Quarter 3 19/20
2 (12.5%)
4 (25%)
10 (62.5%)

Quarter 2 19/20
3 (18.75%)
3 (18.75%)
10 (62.5%)

Areas of Success
The Council’s Customer Contact Centre continues to perform strongly. Within Q3
93.5% of the 25,831 calls received within this period were answered against a target
of 91%. In addition the average wait time within this period was just under 68
seconds, a reduction of nearly 20 seconds when compared with the previous
quarter.
There has been a significant reduction in the number of flytips reported within the
district. For this period a total of 135 flytips were reported, a reduction of 88 when
compared with the same period twelve months ago. This reduction clearly
demonstrates that the Council’s enforcement and education strategies, along with a
number of high profile social media campaigns are proving successful. In addition
the average time to remove a reported flytip for this period was just 5 days, again
demonstrating an excellent service to South Holland residents.
The Council’s digital online presence continues to go from strength to strength.
Underpinned by the digital and customer access strategies there has been an
increase of over 60% with in excess of 62,000 individual engagements within this
period. This clearly demonstrates that an increasing number of residents are using
online mediums to interact and engage with Council services.

3.1

Areas for Improvement
At the end of Q3 the net income of EHC was just under £10,000 of what was
forecasted at the start of the financial year. This reduction in income is attributed to
increased marketing and costs relating to the recent re-brand. The team hopes to
convert a number of leads resulting from the recent marketing campaign into quarter
4 and it is anticipated that this income position can be recovered before the financial
year end

4.0
4.1

Recommendation
That the contents of the report be noted

5.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

5.1

The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

Page 22

6.0

IMPLICATIONS

6.1

Constitution & Legal
The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring
Panel.

6.2

Corporate Priorities
The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

6.3

Financial
The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey
some information relating to financial matters.

6.4

Reputation
Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose
of this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

6.5

Risk Management
Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect
Council interests.

6.6

Staffing
The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

7.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

7.1

No Wards or Communities are affected

8.0

ACRONYMS
PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Ross Bangs – Change, Innovation & Performance
Manager
07870835233
ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Page 23

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post:
Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation, Change and
Performance Manager
Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Quarter 3 Performance Report

Page 24

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Headline Page

Q3 Performance Report

Performance Overview
Q3, 2019 | JUL - SEP

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

KEY PERFORMANCE
OV E R V I E W
B Y S TAT U S

10
Red (12.5%)
Amber (25%)
Green (62.5%)

4

2

PERFORMANCE BREAKDOWN INDEX

Performing/
OverPerforming

% of Calls answered - Page 1
Avg Days to deal with flytipping - Page 3
Empty properties brought back
into use - Page7
Housing Re-let times - Page 7
Staff Turnover - Page 9
Food businesses rated as '3' or
above - Page 11
Number of Grants awarded
(G4G) - Page 12
Major Planning Application
Determination times - Page 14
Minor Planning application
determination times - Page 14
Business Rate in year
collection - Page 15

Slightly
Under
Performing

% of FOIs responded to within
time frame specified - Page 5
% of Complaints responded to
within time frame specified Page 5
Staff Sickness - Page 9
Council tax in year collection Page 15

Page 25

Requiring
Improvement

Number of missed waste
collections - Page 3
EHC Income - Page 11

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 1

Q3 Performance Report

Customer Engagement
Q3, 2019 | JUL - SEP

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in services we provide to our

01

residents who contact us either through our traditional or digital
platforms, which is supporting our corporate priority

"Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
% of calls abandoned
Average wait time
Number of retweets
Social media engagement
Number of website visitors

% OF CALLS ANSWERED

100

96.37%

92.65%

94.96%

93.6%

93.5%

% OF CALLS
ANSWERED

93.5%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
91%

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of calls that are
answered from the total number of
calls taken. A higher % indicates
more calls answered.

50

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF CALLS
ANSWERED
3.43%

7.35%

5.04%

6.5%

6.04%

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

% OF CALLS ANSWERED

Q2

Q3

% ABANDONED

95.15%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
90%

AVERAGE WAIT
TIME (IN
SECONDS)

AVERAGE WAIT TIME (IN SECONDS)

107.4

67.6

100
85.7

85

70.2

67.6

70.2

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

25,831

FORECASTED
% OF CALLS
ANSWERED

Q4

90-93%

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the average waiting time
for phonecalls. A lower number
indicates less time for the call to be
answered.

SECONDS

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -AVERAGE
WAIT TIME (IN
SECONDS)

50

NUMBER OF
CALLS
RECEIVED

SECONDS

AVERAGE WAIT TIME IN SECONDS
Page 26

NUMBER OF
CALLS
RECEIVED

FORECASTED AVERAGE
WAIT TIME IN
SECONDS

Q4

25,831

70-80
Seconds

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 2

Q3 Performance Report

Customer Engagement
continued

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | JUL - SEP

S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

POINTS TO NOTE

SATISFACTION
NUMBER
OF
WITH SERCO
SOCIAL MEDIA
ENGAGEMENTS

NUMBER OF
RETWEETS

92%
38,774

505

U p by 2 % s i n c e l a s t
Quarter

58%

The Customer contact team have continued
to perform well into Quarter 3, despite
historic seasonal trends for customer contact
to be lower in this period the end of the
quarter saw the team faced with an Election
which was the first to be held in December
since 1923. Call volumes for elections alone
increased to 288 compared to the same time
in 18/19 when the team only received an
additional 76 calls. On top of this the team
have also had to deliver additional training to
advisors ahead of the implementation of an
upcoming Revs and Bens project, a total of
35 team members were trained throughout
December. Supervisors have continued to
react to the needs of the business by
ensuring that advisors have the right skill
sets for the demands of our customers.
Compared to the same period in 18/19 call
volumes have increased from 4648 to 4804.
The team is currently achieving a YTD
average of 94.57% compared to 92.47% in
18/19 an increase of 2.10%

NUMBER OF
WEBSITE VISITORS

81,131

60.7%

4.8%

NUMBER OF SOCIAL MEDIA ENGAGEMENTS

62317
60k
45,863
38,774

40k
25,087

25,029

TWITTER VS FACEBOOK LIKES (FOLLOWERS)

20k
3k

0
Q4

Q1

NUMBER OF
FACEBOOK
ENGAGEMENTS

Q2

Q3

NUMBER OF
TWITTER
ENGAGEMENTS

1k

19,285

0
D
ec
Ja
n
Fe
b
M
ar
Ap
r
M
ay
Ju
n

43,032

Twitter

Web Form (10.7%)

Call (70.78%)

Face to Face (14.89%)

Facebook

CONTACT CHANNELS BY TYPE Q2

CONTACT CHANNELS BY TYPE Q3

Email (3.63%)

Ju
l
Au
g
Se
p
O
ct
N
ov
D
ec

Q3

2k

Page 27

Email (4.99%)

Web Form (11.16%)

Call (64.47%)

Face to Face (19.39%)

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 3

Q3 Performance Report

Environmental Services
Q3, 2019 | JUL - SEP

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in services we provide to the

02

districts community and environment, which is supporting our
corporate priority

"Your Place"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
Number of bins collected vs number of bins missed
Number of working days to deal with fly tipping
Number of incidents of fly-tipping
% of household waste recycled or composted
Average number of working days to deal with missed waste
Number of garden waste subscribers

MISSED WASTE COLLECTION LAST 4 QUARTERS

NUMBER OF
MISSED WASTE
COLLECTIONS

55
46

43

47

38

40

47
TA RG E T I S B E LO W
33

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -NUMBER OF
MISSED WASTE
COLLECTIONS

20

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

MISSED COLLECTIONS

NUMBER OF WORKING DAYS TO DEAL WITH FLY TIPPING

6.1
5.3

5.2
5

5.0

4.2

43
TA RG E T I S B E LO W
33

NUMBER OF
WORKING DAYS TO
DEAL WITH FLY
TIPPING

5.0 Days
TA RG E T I S B E LO W 5
DAY S

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -NUMBER OF
WORKING DAYS TO
DEAL WITH FLY
TIPPING

2.5

0
Q3

Q4

Q1
AVG NO. DAYS

Q2

Q3

4.2 Days
TA RG E T I S B E LO W 5
DAY S

Page 28

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
average number of missed
collections per 100,000 people, a
lower number is better for this
indicator as we look to ensure fewer
waste collections are missed
% OF
SUCCESSFUL
COLLECTIONS
WITHIN THE
DISTRICT

99.95%

FORECASTED
NUMBER OF
MISSED
WASTE
COLLECTIONS

Q4

43-49

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number of working
days to deal with fly tipping. A
lower number is better for this
indicator, as this ensure fewer days
between an incident being reported
to us and then being cleared.
NUMBER OF
FLY TIPS

135
17%

FORECASTED NUMBER
OF WORKING DAYS TO
DEAL WITH FLY
TIPPING

Q4

4-5 Days

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 4

Q3 Performance Report

Environmental Services
Continued

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

POINTS TO NOTE

S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

% OF HOUSEHOLD
SATISFACTION
WASTE
WITH SERCO
RECYCLED
OR
COMPOSTED

NUMBER OF
GARDEN WASTE
SUBSCRIBERS

6,418

Reporting on Q3 The average number of days taken to
collect reported fly-tipping has improved from over 6
days in Q2 to an average of 5 days in Q3 which is on
target, further work is ongoing by the service to
improve the reporting process as well as further
digital improvements to speed up the process when
tips are collected by the environmental services
team.

AVERAGE NUMBER
OF WORKING DAYS
TO DEAL WITH
MISSED WASTE

92%

12%

< 1 Days

U p by 2 % s i n c e l a s t
Quarter

+251

Missed waste collection figures are showing as red
for this month but once again it is important to note
that this equates to 483 missed collections out of
over 1 million. Giving us a missed collection rate of
around 0.05%, whilst a missed collection is noted as
an issue and each missed collection is reviewed by the
team to ensure this does not happen again it is
important to highlight the work that is done to
resolve missed waste collections when they occur,
this includes the work our communications team do in
collaboration with the environmental services team
to inform residents where collections will not be
made due to other factors. Also key to this is the
speed of which a missed collection is resolved once
reported, at current most missed collections are dealt
with by the team within the next working day. Future
work with between the performance team and the
waste team is set to take place to record and monitor
what % of missed waste collections are dealt with in
the space of one working day to ensure that
resolution work is highlighted and at the forefront of
future missed waste performance reporting.

FLY TIPPING INCIDENTS LAST 4 QUARTERS

259
223
200

172

164

F LY T I P P I N G A N N U A L F I G U R E S 1 8 / 1 9

135

South Holland

100

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

FLY TIPS REPORTED

876

Boston

1302

East Lindsey

1180

Fenland

1829

North Kesteven

889

South Kesteven

777

Lincoln

2450

Melton

382

% OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLED OR COMPOSTED
FLY TIPS REPORTED MONTHLY BREAKDOWN

66
58
50

45

58
50

47

40

38

25

RESIDUAL WASTE (70.68%)

Page 29

FLY TIPS REPORTED

D
EC

N
O
V

O
CT

SE
P

AU
G

JU
L

COMPOSTED (3.33%)

JU
N

RECYCLED (25.99%)

M
AY

0

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 5

Q3 Performance Report

Information and
Feedback

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in services we provide for those who

03

wish to submit Freedom of Infomation (FOI) requests or corporate
complaints to us, which is supporting our corporate priority

"Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
% of Freedom of Information Requests (FOI's) responded to in time
% of complaints responded to in time
Number of complaints received
Number of FOI's received
Average response time to complaints

% OF FOI'S RESPONDED TO IN TIME

100

92%

96%

97%
87%

78%

% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED TO
IN TIME

87%

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of FOI's responded to
within the statutory 20 day
timescale.

TA RG E T I S 1 0 0 %

50

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME
0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

% RESPONDED TO IN TIME

87%

92%

97%

80%

TA RG E T I S 1 0 0 %

% OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO
IN TIME

% OF COMPLAINTS RESPONDED TO IN TIME

100

78%

77%

77%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
80%

50

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

% RESPONDED TO IN TIME

Q3

80%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
80%

Page 30

NUMBER OF
FOIS DUE
RESPONSE

91

27%

FORECASTED
% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED
TO IN TIME

Q4

96-98%

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number on the % of
complaints responded to within the
agreed timescale. The standard
timescale for a response in 15 DAYS
unless an agreement for an
extension is made.
NUMBER OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED
TO

FORECASTED % OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME

31

Q4

20%

85-90%

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 6

Q3 Performance Report

Information and
Feedback continued
Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

NUMBER OF
COMPLAINTS
RECEIVED

21

POINTS TO NOTE

SATISFACTION
NUMBER
OF
WITH SERCO
FOI'S RECEIVED

AVERAGE
RESPONSE TIME TO
COMPLAINTS

92%
71

12.3
Days

U p by 2 % s i n c e l a s t
Quarter

16%

41%

NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS CLOSED

40

40

39
31

30

27

26

20

10

8

6

4

3

2

Q4

Q1

Q2

0
Q3

COMPLAINTS CLOSED

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC
Complaint response times have
improved overall for this quarter with
an average of 12.4 days compared to 14
days for last quarter. The overall
number of complaints has also
decreased by 16% for this quarter when
compared to last however the number
of complaints we upheld as a council
increased slightly. Analysis by the team
shows a majority of upheld complaints
were within the Revenues and benefits
areas but does not highlight any
particular areas of concern at this stage
and no trends have emerged.
FOIs coming into the council has
decreased by in this period by 40%.
Most of this reduction is largely due to
the work of the Statutory information
officer will be issuing responses to Nil
returns and satisfying the requester
before the stage something is logged as
an FOI, this allows greater accuracy of
reporting what the councils actual FOI
volumes are as well as avoiding
unnessecary admin and work for other
services by signposting the requestor in
the right direction.

Q3

COMPLAINTS UPHELD

21
Complaints
received

METHOD OF CONTACT FOR COMPLAINTS/FOIS

71 FOI
requests received
VIA WEB FORM (59.15%)
VIA EMAIL (26.76%)
VIA LETTER (8.45%)
VIA OTHER (5.63%)
Page 31

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 7

Q3 Performance Report

Housing and
Homelessness

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in our housing services, which

04

we provide to our residents, which is supporting our corporate
priority

"Your Home"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
Number of cases prevented from homelessness
Number of empty properties back in use
% of South Holland residents who are homeless
Average time taken to be housed within priority banding

AVERAGE HOUSING
RE-LET TIME - ALL
TENURES

HOUSING RE-LET (VOID) TIME - ALL TENURES

24

20

20

20
18

19

19
Days
TA RG E T I S B E LO W
2 8 DAY S

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR AVERAGE HOUSING
RE-LET TIME - ALL
TENURES

10

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

TOTAL AVG DAYS

RENT LOST DUE
TO VOID
PROPERTIES

RENT LOST DUE TO VOID PROPERTIES

£12821

£12243

20
Days

£13578

£10618

£10362

10k

£10362
DOWN SINCE LAST
Q UA RT E R

SAME PERIOD
LAST YEAR -RENT
LOST DUE TO VOID
PROPERTIES

5k

£12243

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Rent Lost
Page 32

Total time in days from keys in to keys
out - including major works for all
tenures (General Needs and Sheltered
Housing). This is calculated by total
number of days properties remain
vacant divided by the number or
properties vacant in the period.
TOTAL # OF
VOID
PROPERTIES

49

FORECASTED
AVERAGE HOUSING
RE-LET TIME - ALL
TENURES

Q4

18-22
DAYS

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number number of
empty properties brought back into
use through direct intervention by
the council. A higher number means
more properties are being brought
back into use
# OF VOID
DAYS

922
25%

MONEY SAVED SINCE
PERIOD LAST
YEAR DUE TO
AVOIDED RENT LOSS
FROM VOIDS

£1,881

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 8

Q3 Performance Report

Housing and
Homelessness continued Q3,

2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

POINTS TO NOTE
S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

TIME TAKEN TO
PROCESS DFG
APPLICATIONS

199
DAYS
3%

AVERAGE NUMBER OF DAYS TO PROCESS AND IMPLEMENT DFG
APPLICATIONS

232
200

201

193

189

199

150

100

With regards to monitoring empty homes
within the district, going forward for Q1 20/21
this figure will be broken down into two new
PIs, one will be the annual churn figure which
will reflect the yearly empty homes figure and
if this has reduced or increased since last year,
this ties in directly with the new homes bonus.
The second figure will be a quarterly measure
which will show the number of empty homes
referred to the private sector housing team
which this team has taken direct action on.

50

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Number of assessed households owed
homelessness prevention duty by Local
Authority (Q1 Apr-Jun latest available
data)
South Holland

43

Boston

21
149
63
119

South Kesteven

98

Lincoln

77

Amber Valley

110

Norwich

104

Kings Lynn

19

South Norfolk

31

North Norfolk

76

Forest of Dean

58

50

43
21

19

0

Page 33

Bo
st
on

North Kesteven

77
63

H
ol
la
…

Fenland

79

So
ut
h

East Lindsey

HOUSEHOLDS IN TEMP ACCOMMODATION (Q1 Apr-Jun latest
available data)

Li
nc
ol
n

28%

Fe
nl
an
d

18

Housing re-let times continue to show positive
figures with performance well above the
targets set, it is important to ensure that the
service delivery by South Hollands housing
team is of a high standard therefore despite
meeting these initial targets the service will
begin an exercise with the performance team
to review these targets to ensure they are fit
for purpose and set a high standard for the
team to aim to without being unrealistic based
on the teams capacity and resources. This
exercise will take into consideration other
local authority benchmarks using councils with
similar resources and demographic numbers to
establish accurate data. It will also use
knowledge of the Housing team as well as any
external insights and data that can be gathered
to forecast future demand where possible.

Br
ec
kl
an
d

97.2%

# OF CASES
PREVENTED FROM
HOMELESSNESS

Ki
ng
sL
yn
n

% OF RENT
CHARGED THAT
HAS BEEN
COLLECTED

The housing service continues to work to a
personalised housing plan (PHP) to address a
number of performance areas including
homelessness – actions will be required of
both the customer and SHDC

Total # of households in temp accomodation

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 9

Q3 Performance Report

Employee Workforce

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in our offer to council

05

employees. This relates to the corporate priority

"Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
Staff turnover
Number of working days lost to sickness per FTE (Full Time Equivalent)
Number of leavers
Number of days lost to sickness

STAFF TURNOVER (%)

STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

2.8%

3.9

4

2.8

2

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

1.7
1.2

0

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

TURNOVER

WORKING DAYS LOST TO SICKNESS PER FTE

2.7

2

TA RG E T I S B E LO W
4.3%

1.2%
TA RG E T I S B E LO W
4.3%

# OF WORKING
DAYS LOST TO
SICKNESS PER
FTE

2.7
1.7
1.5

TA RG E T I S B E LO W
2 . 5 DAY S

1.6
1.4

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -# OF
WORKING DAYS
LOST TO SICKNESS
PER FTE

1

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

DAYS LOST PER FTE

Q2

Q3

1.7

TA RG E T I S B E LO W
2 . 5 DAY S

Page 34

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of staff turnover. This is
calculated by the total number of
leavers against the total number of
staff employed. A lower number
shows successful staff retention
NUMBER OF
LEAVERS IN THE
PERIOD

FORECASTED
STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

7

Q4

2-3%

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number on the
number of working days lost per
FTE (Full Time Equivalent). A lower
number shows less time lost to
sickness
NUMBER OF DAYS
LOST TO
SICKNESS

630
69%

FORECASTED # OF
WORKING DAYS LOST
TO SICKNESS PER FTE

Q4

1.5-2
DAYS

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 10

Q3 Performance Report

Employee Workforce
Continued
Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC
POINTS TO NOTE

SHORT TERM DAYS LOST VS LONG TERM DAYS LOST

NUMBER OF DAYS
LOST TO
SICKNESS

630

173

69%
488

LONG TERM (73.83%)
SHORT TERM (26.17%)
NUMBER OF LEAVERS

10

10

7

5

4
3

0

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Sickness levels increased in Q3
which is a seasonal trend we often
note for this time, this is
often largely due to colds, flu etc. in
the colder months. However trend
analysis highlights November being
the highest month for sickness in this
period with
Stress/Anxiety/Depression as one of
the most common reasons for
absence. The council as well as
partner organisations recognises
mental health as a key issue that can
affect performance, attendance and
the wellbeing of staff most
importantly. HR work with the rest of
the organisation to put together and
deliver wellbeing initiatives to focus
on addressing mental health and
supporting our staff, this can involve
such initiatives as the MHFA Group
and support champions,
Men/Womens sheds as well as
Employee assist schemes and
reviewing the support we are
receiving from this scheme to ensure
staff have access to the best mental
health support channels.

LEAVERS

NUMBER OF DAYS LOST TO SICKNESS PER FTE

4

1.9LONG TERM

2
1.2
0.4

0.9
0.5

0.8
0.4

Q3

Q4

Q1

1.1
0.4

SICKNESS UK LA
AVERAGE (1.3 DAYS)

0.7SHORT TERM

SICKNESS UK LA
AVERAGE (1.1 DAYS)

0
LONG TERM

Q2

Q3

SHORT TERM
Page 35

According to the most recent
Local Government workforce
survey the average quarterly
staff turnover rate for local
authorities is 3.6% and this
data is based on 87 local
authority responses.

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 11

Q3 Performance Report

Public Protection

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in our Public Protection

06

services. This relates to the corporate

"Your
Health
and
priority
Wellbeing"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
EHTC (Environmental Health Training & Consultancy) net income
% of food businesses rated 3 or above
Number of food businesses within the district
EHTC NET INCOME (£)

EHTC NET
INCOME (£)

NET INCOME TARGET

£156,598

£79,336

150k
£123,598
100k
£79,336
£59,808
50k

£32,000

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

NET INCOME

% OF FOOD BUSINESSES RATED 3 OR ABOVE

100

96.9

98.3

98.11

98.5

99.06

C U M U L AT I V E TA RG E T
F O R Q 3 I S A B OV E
£88,500

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -EHTC NET
INCOME (£)

NET INCOME THIS
PERIOD

£123,598

£19,528

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
£88,500

% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES
RATED 3 OR
ABOVE

99.06%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
98%

80

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES RATED
3 OR ABOVE
60
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

96.9%

% OF FOOD BUSINESSES

These indicators highlight the
number of registered food business
present within the district

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the net
income produced by EHTC. The
higher the number the more net
income generated

TOTAL NUMBER OF
FOOD BUSINESSES
RATED WITHIN THE
DISTRICT

985
Page 36

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
£29,500

FORECASTED
EHTC NET
INCOME

Q4

£25-30K

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the percentage of food
business rated 3 (generally
satisfactory) or above within the
district. A higher number means
more businesses are achieving this
standard
NUMBER OF
BUSINESSES RATED
3 OR ABOVE

976
Out of
985
% OF RATED
BUSINESSES AS A 5
(VERY GOOD)

77.9%

FORECASTED % OF
FOOD BUSINESSES
RATED 3 OR ABOVE

Q4

97-99%
% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES
RATED BELOW 3

1.3%

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 12

Q3 Performance Report

Economic and Growth
Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in areas related to the councils

07

economic and growth services. This relates to the corporate
priority

"Your Opportunity"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following
Commercial Property gross rental income
New homes delivered
New homes completed
Wage levels
Unemployment levels

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OCCUPANCY

100

98%

98%

98%

98%

98%

COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY

98%

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
90%

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the % of
commercial units that have been
let. A higher number shows
increased income and occupancy
from our assets.

50

SAME PERIOD LAST COMMERCIAL
YEAR -COMMERCIAL UNITS LET
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY
0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OCCUPANCY

23

13

19
16
13

10

0
Q4

Q1

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
12

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR - NUMBER OF
GRANTS DELIVERED
VIA G4G

6

Q3

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
90%

NUMBER OF
GRANTS
DELIVERED VIA
GRANTS4GROWTH

GRANTS4GROWTH DELIVERY

20

98%

Q2

NUMBER OF GRANTS AWARDED

Q3

19
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
12

Page 37

49 OUT
OF 50

FORECASTED
COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY

Q4

98%

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the total number of grants
that are awarded via grants for
growth to local businesses within the
district, higher is better as we look
to award more grants where possible
to boost local businesses
VALUE
AWARDED IN
GRANTS FOR
YEAR (19/20)
SO FAR

FORECASTED # OF
GRANTS4GROWTH
GRANTS DELIVERED

Q4

£364,414 15-20

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 13

Q3 Performance Report

Economic and Growth
Continued

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
S U P P O R T I N G D ATA A N D A N A LY S I S

NEW HOMES
COMPLETED (18/19)

809
342 Above
requirement

POINTS TO NOTE

NEW HOMES
SATISFACTION
ENABLED
WITH SERCO

UNEMPLOYMENT
RATE

66
92%

4.3%

46%

U p by 2 % s i n c e l a s t
Quarter

Housing Delivery Breakdown is as follows
20 Enabled in December
31 Enabled in November
15 enabled in October

East Midlands
average is 4.6%

NEW HOMES ENABLED BREAKDOWN FOR Q3

EHC Expenditure was slightly higher in this
period due to re-branding work, net income
looks to be on target for Q4 fwith futher
marketing campaigns planned to bring in
more income

59

7

NEW HOMES (89.39%)
NEW AFFORDABLE HOMES (10.61%)

UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (%)

£22,326

5

4.3

3.9
3.5

4.5

4.6
4.2

4.6
4.3

Q1

Q2

3.9
3.6

4

AVERAGE WAGE FOR
SOUTH HOLLAND
RESIDENTS

2
Q2

This has increased by 3.1% since last year

Q3
SOUTH HOLLAND

Page 38

Q4

EAST MIDLANDS AVG

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 14

Q3 Performance Report

PLANNING PROVISION
Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in areas related to the councils

08

"Your Place"

planning services. This relates to the corporate priority

How we are performing as a council in these areas is
measured by the following
% of major planning applications determined within time
% of minor planning applications determined within time

% OF MA JOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

100

100

96

100
93.3
81.2

% OF MA JOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

100%

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
60%

50

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

% OF MINOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

100

89.86

93.2

87.41

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF MA JOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

NUMBER OF
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED
WITHIN PERIOD

FORECASTED % OF
MA JOR PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED
WITHIN TIME

96%

18

Q4

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
60%

APPS DETERMINED WITHIN 13 WEEKS

96.3

80.3

% OF MINOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

96.39%
TA RG E T I S A B OV E
70%

50

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF MINOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

0
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

APPS DETERMINED WITHIN 8 WEEKS

Q3

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of major planning
applications determined within time
(13 weeks or agreed extension). The
higher the number, the more agreed
within this period.

89.86%

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
70%
Page 39

95-100%

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the percentage of minor
planning applications determined
within time (8 weeks or agreed
extension). The higher the number
the more agreed within this period

NUMBER OF
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED
WITHIN PERIOD

194

FORECASTED % OF
MINOR PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

Q4

95-98%

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team
Page 15

Q3 Performance Report

COUNCIL REVENUES

Q3, 2019/20
OCT - DEC

Q3, 2019 | OCT - DEC
K E Y I N D I C ATO R S

This section covers performance in areas related to council tax and business

08

rate collection.
This relates to the corporate priority

"Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is
measured by the following
Business rate in year collections
Council tax in year collections

BUSINESS RATE IN
YEAR COLLECTION
RATE

BUSINESS RATE IN YEAR COLLECTION RATE

100

82.8%

75

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
82.8%

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR - BUSINESS
RATE IN YEAR
COLLECTION RATE

50

25

82.7%
Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

100

IN YEAR
COLLECTION
AMOUNT

£22,518,032

TOTAL COLLECTABLE
DEBIT

£27,167,158

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
83.7%

COUNCIL TAX IN
YEAR COLLECTION
RATE

COUNCIL TAX IN YEAR COLLECTION RATE

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the amount of Council
Tax collected in the year against the
total collectable debit

84.91%

75

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
85.1%

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR - COUNCIL
TAX IN YEAR
COLLECTION RATE

50

25

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the - Amount
of Business Rates collected in the
year against the total collectable
debit

85.1%

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

TA RG E T I S A B OV E
85.5%
Page 40

IN YEAR
COLLECTION
AMOUNT

£42,163,050

TOTAL COLLECTABLE
DEBIT

£49,659,038

Agenda Item 10
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Robert Walker, Executive Director, Place

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 29 January 2020

(Author:

Lucy Buttery, Principal Planning Officer)

Subject:

Review of Implemented Planning Decisions

Purpose:

To consider the updated record of findings from the tour

Recommendation(s):
1) That the Panel gives consideration to the report and updated findings and that they
recommend these be considered by the Planning Committee.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

At the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel on 12th November 2019, members
considered the findings of the tour of sites that was undertaken as part of the review of
implemented planning decisions. A number of issues relating to the sites visited were
raised by members in addition to those set out in the report.

1.2

In order to accurately reflect the issues raised by members, the record of findings from the
tour has been subsequently updated. The updated findings can be found in Appendix A.
Members will note that the formatting of this document has altered from that previously
considered, as comments are no longer attributed to a specific site and are instead
separated into two sections – aspects that had been done well and aspects that could be
improved - in order to provide clarity on these points.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Option 1 - That the Panel considers the report and updated findings and that they
recommend these be considered by the Planning Committee.

2.2

Option 2 - That the Panel does nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Option 1 is recommended in order for the Performance Monitoring Panel to confirm the
updated findings and to inform the Planning Committee of the conclusions of the review.

3.2

Option 2 is not recommended as it would be contrary to the purpose of the review, which is
to improve the quality and consistency of decision-making, strengthen public confidence in
the planning system, and help with reviews of planning policy.

Page 41

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The delivery of quality development within South Holland on an ongoing basis.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Corporate Priorities

5.1.1

The review of implemented planning decisions relates to the following corporate priorities :
 Your Home – Enable effective planning and delivery of housing solutions to meet
local needs and aspirations to ensure that our residents have access to a range of
housing options in the district; and ensure that our residents are enabled to live in
high quality housing no matter the tenure;
 Your Place – Support the expansion and growth of Spalding and Holbeach to be
attractive places where people want to visit, live and work whilst supporting all other
towns and villages in the district to meets the needs of their communities.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

There are no wards or communities affected.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

Not applicable.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None.

Lucy Buttery Principal Planning Officer
lbuttery@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Summary of Comments from Tour of Sites (Updated January 2020)

Page 42

Appendix A
Summary of Comments from Tour of Sites
(Updated January 2020)
Aspects that had been done well
-

-

There were two schemes where it was felt that the layout and design was good and in
respect of one particular scheme it was commented that a good transition had been
achieved from existing to new development
A good variety of materials (brick and tile types) had been used on one site which was
liked
The pumping station on one development had been well located with vehicle flow in and
out and there had been an attempt made to visually separate it from the development
On two sites, meter boxes had been located on side elevations were possible thus
minimising their prominence
On one development in particular it was commented that it does not feel like a 100%
affordable scheme and the stone cill details used were liked

Aspects that could be improved
-

-

-

-

On one particular scheme the quality of the play area was felt to be poor as only limi ted
pieces of equipment have been provided
Consideration should be given to the location of pumping stations – locating them in the
middle of open space limits the functionality of it
Could be more variety of front door designs in some developments
Potential for more variation of ‘building line’ in places
Loose cables on the front elevation of houses for satellite dishes look poor
Obtrusiveness of meter boxes on front elevations in a number of instances
Peculiar position of tree in pavement on one particular development
On one specific scheme the easement to the IDB drain adjacent had been dedicated as
open space but the grass had been damaged by the Board maintaining this drain. On
another development, concerns were raised about possible future maintenance issues
for the easement adjacent the IDB drain
External design of affordable units different to market units on one scheme
The colour of windows and door features were mismatched in one instance and the
green windows used at the front of the development could have been continued
throughout the scheme
On one development no railings/fencing had been erected around a refuse collection
point to define it
Prominent parking space numbering was not liked
Some properties on one scheme had no level access and some were lower than the
road meaning a drop down to the rear garden gate
There was one scheme in particular where it was felt that it was overdeveloped
Also on the above scheme, it was noted that there was a mismatch of brick type on
semi-detached dwellings which was not liked as well as a mismatch of fencing on the
eastern boundary. The pavements and road were block paved in parts which it was felt
could create visibility issues
On the same site there were small or missing refuse collection points and it was unclear
who had management responsibility for private drives
Bricked up windows were observed on one development but it was questioned whether
this was a worthwhile design feature. Furthermore, the visual dominance of the balcony
on certain house types was disliked

Page 43

Appendix A
-

-

-

One scheme was considered to be maze like in terms of layout overbearing in places.
Comments were also made about the juxtaposition of 3 storey and 2 storey dwellings on
parts of the site and that the planting scheme could be improved
Concerns were raised about poorly lit alleys between the rear ends of gardens and
street lighting being located in inappropriate places
Unconventional doors that were not aesthetically pleasing had been added to the
integrated parking spaces of some dwellings on one particular scheme. Furthermore,
concern was raised about the potential for parking on frontages due to parking spaces
and garages being located to the rear of properties
Flats Over Garages in car dominated areas offer a poor outlook for occupants of such
dwellings
On one scheme it was noted that there was a peculiar weathering effect on the
brickwork of some dwellings. Overall it was felt that that particular development had a
confined feel and points were raised about ensuring that care is taken in the positioning
of refuse collection points in relation to surrounding development

Page 44

Agenda Item 11
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Rob Walker – Executive Director Place and Councillor Gary Taylor

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel- Wednesday, 29 January 2020

Author:

Anita Goddard-Gill- Technical Projects Coordinator

Subject

Industrial Unit Update

Purpose:

To provide Members with an update on the current use of the Industrial Units.

Recommendation(s):
1) That panel members consider the content of this report and note progress made to date.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Performance Monitoring Panel have requested an overview of the current position
regarding the Councils industrial units including information on their current use.

1.2

Over the last 12 months a review of the current arrangements for the management of the
industrial units has been undertaken. The main areas of focus have been:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Reviewing the 2005 Lettings Policy
Lease Renewals and Rent Reviews
Providing effective Asset Management
Effective Rent Management
Voids & Re-Letting
Maximising Income
Legislative Requirements

2.0

Units

2.1

The table below shows the number of units at each location.
Location
Sutton Bridge
Holbeach
Spalding
Crowland
Crowland

Site
Railway Lane
Fleet Road Industrial Estate
Benner Road
Horseshoe Yard
Pinnacle Close

HISTORY & PROGRESS
3.1

a. Reviewing the current Lettings Policy

Page 45

Number of Units
14
12
10
10
4

 Progress to date:
o

The review of the Lettings Policy has been drafted with recommendations being
presented to the Policy Development Panel on the 3rd March 2020 before being
taken to Cabinet on the 17th March 2020 for sign off, if approved;

o

The key changes in the Policy are as follows:

Implementation of a Service Charge -

Service charges are levied to cover the
maintenance and repair of the common parts
of the estate and the external parts of the
units. For properties where service charges
may not be applicable, the Tenant may be
responsible for both internal and external
repairs.

Flexibility around Term

Depending on market demand, market terms
and Tenant covenant strength it may be
necessary to allow flexibility to enable shorter
and longer term leases to be agreed.
Flexibility around Use Class – Not restricting As market conditions change, so does the
ourselves to the current B1/B2/B8 uses for potential use of the Council’s Commercial
industrial units
portfolio. It is important that we are flexible in
the types of business that we permit i.e. D2
(Assembly & Leisure). All changes of use will
be subject to planning permission and
Landlord’s prior written consent.
Follow a more commercial approach in terms
of repairing liability and statutory regulations

Ensuring that the leases are granted on a Full
Repairing and Insuring basis, with emphasis
on the Tenant to ensure they are carrying out
the necessary statutory compliance.

The introduction of a new precedent lease for The use of a precedent lease will enable the
industrial units, to enable amendments and council to review it regularly ensuring that it
legal costs to be kept to minimum
reflects the most recent legislative changes,
commercial practise and meets the strategic
aims of the council.
Leases are contracted outside the provisions
of Part II of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954

This will ensure that at the end of the term the
Council can recover the asset if it wishes.
Alternatively the Council can grant a new lease
to the Tenant on updated terms.

Yield Up - A schedule of dilapidations will be
undertaken by the Council prior to the
termination of the tenancy, outlining the items
of disrepair the Tenant is responsible for
remedying.

This places the emphasis on the Tenant to
hand back the asset in a good condition. At
present the void costs fall to the council, and
these can be substantial.

Page 46

3.2

b. Lease Renewals and Rent Reviews

 Progress to date:

3.3

o

New proposed Heads of Terms have been issued to all Tenants that are currently
on holdover (37 Units). Some Tenants have agreed to the terms and these are
being progressed with the legal department. Other Tenants have queried the terms
and explanations have been provided. Additional meetings have also been
arranged with the Tenants to discuss terms in detail;

o

The Heads of Terms have had consideration on Tenant’s circumstances i.e. to
support the local businesses and those with multiple units by proposing a stepped
rent over the three year period to minimise the impact of the increase.

c. Providing effective Lease/Asset Management

 Progress to date:

3.4

o

Business contact details to be collated for each Tenant.;

o

Internal inspections have now taken place on the majority of units. External legal
advice has been sought where the Council wishes to remedy breaches of tenancy;

o

External inspections have taken place across all sites to ascertain current condition
and recommended works. A programme of investment across the estates including
cyclical works has been identified. In particular, Railway Lane, Sutton Bridge, has
been identified as requiring extensive external works including car parking,
landscaping, road surfacing and ground clearance;

o

A schedule of estate improvements has been identified for each location and an
ongoing maintenance programme is being developed.

d. Effective Rent Management

 Progress to date
o

A pro-active and involved approach with Credit Control has improved the
communication with Tenants and standard correspondence has been put in place to
chase non-payment of rent;

o

Implemented a monthly report from Credit Control to enable early identification of
any potential arrears;

o

Engaged with external legal support to provide suitable advice on Tenant arrears;

Page 47

3.5

e. Voids & Re-Letting

 Progress to date:

3.6

3.7

o

All vacant properties between April 2019 and November 2019 (10 units) have
been let promptly at full market rents to local businesses. This has included a
service charge provision, insurance rent, deposits and the new Tenants
accepted the lease terms on a full repairing and insuring liability;

o

A local agent was instructed to manage the new lettings and any others going
forward. These units have been professionally advertised with high levels of
interest received. Thorough reference and credit checks are carried out by the
agent who provide us with an informed report and recommendations. By
utilising an external agent/impartial surveyor the process is fair and transparent;

o

A new precedent lease has been prepared and has been reviewed by an
impartial chartered surveyor and external lawyer. This provides improved
protection to the council as Landlord, modern terminology, definition of Tenant
responsibilities i.e. dilapidations at the end of the term, statutory requirements
and approvals.

f. Maximising Income
 Progress to date:
o

Service charges have been introduced to each new letting. This charge forms part
of the new precedent lease and will be agreed with all new lettings and renewals
moving forward. The introduction of the service charge enables the council to
improve and maintain the assets both internally and externally. This ensures that
the units continue to meet the market potential;

o

Buildings insurance is now being recharged to the Tenants.

o

On the completion of new leases and some renewals the Tenants shall contribute
£250 towards the council’s reasonable legal costs;

o

The deposit monies enable the council to recover any rent/service charge/insurance
rent arrears or dilapidation claims.

g. Legislative Requirements

 Progress to date:
o

Building Control have been instructed to carry out the regularisation applications on
an initial 8 units. It is anticipated that inspections will take place within a two week
period with completion dependant on findings. Other minor regularisations will be
carried out after the completion of the initial 8;

Page 48

o

4.0
4.1

Energy Performance Ccertificates (EPC) have been carried out on units that have
recently been re-let and where necessary, improvement works have been carried
out to ensure that they comply with the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards
(MEES) that requires that all new lets including relets must meet a minimum EPC of
level E. Building Control have been instructed to carry out EPCs on all properties
that have not recently been relet Horseshoe Yard and Pinnacle Close have been
completed with recommendations to be confirmed.

Use
The units are used by small specialist engineering companies, suppliers of specialist goods
and for contractors such as plumbers, carpenters etc.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Panel Members are asked to note the information contained within this report.

6.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

6.1

That panel members consider the content of this report and note progress made to date.

7.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

7.1

It’s expected that following the full review of the industrial units, and the implementation of
the new proposed lettings policy, the Council will be in a strong position regarding the
following:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

8.0

Effective management of the units;
Strong relationships with Tenants;
Firm arrears processes;
Clearly defined roles and responsibilities of both Tenants and Landlord;
Increased income into the General Fund;
Planned preventative maintenance regimes;
Understanding market requirements;
Compliance with Councils legal duties.

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the following implications have been considered. Crime & Disorder;
Data Protection; Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Health & Wellbeing; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. Consideration to the below headings have been made.

9.0
9.1

CONSTITUTIONAL & LEGAL
Throughout the process Legal Services have been consulted to ensure constitution and
legal practices are followed.

Page 49

10.0

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

10.1

With effective management, an anticipated increase in income will be realised, therefore
underpinning the corporate priorities of being a financially independent and commercially
astute Council and achieving balanced budget.

10.2

Whilst addressing the issues with the current 2005 policy, the new recommended 2019
Lettings Policy will allow for officer’s greater flexibility to negotiate and conclude terms and
offer choice with the length of term, the use type (subject to Town and Country Order
1987), deposit amount etc in order to tailor the offer to suit both the needs of the customer
and the Council.

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Email:

Anita Goddard-Gill Technical Projects Coordinator
Anita.Goddard-Gill@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:
Exempt Decision:

N
N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service / Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 50

Agenda Item 12
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities and Executive Director - Place

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 29 January 2020

Author:

Anita Goddard-Gill, Jason King Property Asset Services Manager, Housing
Landlord Services Manager

Subject

Public Toilet Reports

Purpose:

To provide an update to the Performance Monitoring panel on the progress of
feasibility works concerned the replacement or refurbishment of the public toilets.

Recommendation(s):
1) That the panel notes the content of the report.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The original brief from Cabinet was to consider the agreed option which was;
Option Two - Re-configure the current buildings to create individual cubicles which
reduce the potential for ASB, include automatic locking doors and create a more modern
and easy clean facility.

1.2

This option was proposed to address a number of the issues raised in the consultation as
follows:
 Removing the fear of ASB,
 Allowing the toilets to be open longer whilst reducing the need for manual locking and
unlocking each day
 Creating clean and fresh toilet facilities that can be easily maintained
 Reduce potential for vandalism

1.3

That the toilets of Spalding and Holbeach are re-configured and updated as suggested in
recommendation option two.

1.4

The report further recommended that:
 That the new public toilets are fitted with payment facilities to charge for users a
minimum of 20p.That Vine Street toilets be decommissioned as a public toilet and an
alternative use of this building be considered.
 That capital funding for the recommended option be released from the Market Towns
programme.
 That the Executive Director for Place, in consultation with the portfolio holder for Place,
be given delegated authority to complete any associated actions necessary to enable
the commencement of re-configuring the toilets and initialising charges for use.

1.5

The option proposed, although requiring building works, does not require demolition of the
building and was recommended as being the most effective and cost efficient option which

Page 51

would also allow for the opportunity to be explored to incorporate commercial space within
the buildings.
1.6

The report recommended that options appraisals were undertaken on the three public
toilets blocks at Sheep Market and Winfrey Avenue Spalding and Church Road Holbeach.
To assist the appraisal a site visit was made to Wisbech in Fenland District Council (FDC)
who have installed the Healthmatic System systems in their market towns

1.7

The Wisbech site was considered comparable as the facilities proposed are similar to
Winfrey Avenue and Sheep market where they situated off a public carpark.

1.8

FDC installed 5 toilets on this site, 2 male, 2 female and 1 disabled facility, that were
retrofitted in an existing toilet block. With direct access off the pavement there is no lobby
area for use as a meeting place which reduces the possibility of ASB. It was noted that the
toilets at Holbeach would need to be remodelled to achieve this which will require planning
consent.

1.9

FDC reported a number of issues which have arisen since the installation of the facilities
approximately 6 years ago;


The electronic locking on the doors is frequently out of order and expensive to repair.
Attempts have frequently been made to break into the mechanisms as money is thought
to be there



Remote locking has not worked therefore they have reverted to locking in person. It was
reported that people have frequently found ways to hold open the electronic door such
as using a piece of card to stop the closing mechanism and return later to sleep inside
which causes damage to the locking system



The hand wash system is expensive to maintain and repair when it breaks down which
it was reported to do frequently.



The flooring was not laid on a proper base and already needs replacing.



The design and finish of the toilets has not worn as well as they had anticipated and
consequently they have found that despite cleaning they do not appear clean and less
hygienic for customers.

1.10

A site visit was not made to the Danfo option as the nearest location was Southend-on-Sea.

1.11

It is considered possible to achieve commercial space on the side of Sheepmarket with the
possible creation of a small kiosk outlet. It is also possible to create a small space at
Winfrey Avenue but this is dependent on what option is favoured as the module system
service area and operational equipment (see attached) take significant space. Again this
could be small kiosk outlet.

1.12

Any works to create retail space will require to include the costs of construction. The costs
for fitting out any retail space are not included above.

1.13

No exploration of income from charging or commercial income has been undertaken to date

Page 52

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To note the content of the report

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Report to be noted

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

As identified in the original report to cabinet

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Crime and Disorder

5.1.1

It was anticipated that with the introduction of the proposed toilet system ASB levels would
reduce. During the inspections of neighbouring districts, Fenland District Council advised
that there has been no notable impact on the reduction of ASB levels.
During the visit to Fenland District Council they advised that the chute to dispose of sharps
is used although needles are still found behind panels that are ripped off to secrete
needles.

5.1.2

5.2

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.2.1 It has been identified that with the implementation of option two, the toilet facilities will be
accessible for all.
5.3

Financial

5.3.1

All designs will be chargeable for use. This report has not estimated the income that could
be generated.

5.3.2

Summary of three options and estimated prices based on two designs;



Separate male and female toilets with fully disabled facilities and a baby changing
station
Separate male and female toilets and one fully disabled toilet facility, all with a baby
changing station

Options

Sheepmarket

Winfrey

Holbeach

Danfo 2
disabled units

£72,000
(mid-point)

£72,000
(midpoint)

Danfo – 2
toilets and 1
disabled toilet

£93,500

£93,5000

£57,500
(mid-point)
No site
visit
£93,500
No site
visit

Page 53

Structural Total
Costs
Included
£201,000

Included

£280,500

Healthmatic 2
disabled units

£69,000

£69,000

Included

£207,000

Included

£258,000

£45,000

£69,000
Site visit
was not
done
£86,000
Site visit
was not
done
£40,000

Healthmatic 2
toilets and 1
disabled toilet

£86,000

£86,000

Refurbishment
– 2 disabled
toilets
Refurbishment
– 2 toilets and
1 disabled unit

£76,500

Included

£161,500

£81,500
Includes
8,000 for
heating
system

£50,000

£45,000

Included

£176,500

5.5.3 Additional notes on costings
5.3.1.1 The costs for fitting out any retail space are not included above.
5.3.1.2 The quotes on the modular systems are heavily estimated as both suppliers
wanted assurance of works orders being placed in order to undertake a fully
costed appraisal
5.3.1.3 Sheep Market currently has a heating system which needs to be maintained in the
event that commercial space is utilised. The Danfo and Healthmatic options do not
include heating.
5.4

Health & Wellbeing

5.4.1
5.4.2
5.4.3

Providing cleaner more hygienic facilities
Providing an accessible facility
Providing baby changing facilities

5.5

Reputation

5.5.1

More publicly acceptable and accessible facilities will be available.

5.6

Risk Management

5.6.1

There is a financial risk that the works as quoted are estimated and could increase

as the modules will be retrofitted into an existing building. Changes to drainage and
ventilation would be required.
5.6.2

No consideration has been made for works required to the fabric and the services
of the building, this could incur further costs.

5.7

Safeguarding

5.7.1

Potentially reduced ASB.

Page 54

5.8

Staffing

5.8.1

The module toilets are intended to be self-locking this could reduce staffing requirements.
In practice though may not be a function that can be relied upon.

5.9

Towns Centres

5.9.1

This project sits within the Town Centre initiative.

Background papers:- N/A.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:

Anita Goddard-Gill, Property Asset Services Manager, Housing
Landlord Services Manager

Telephone Number
Email:

Anita.Goddard-Gill@sholland.gov.uk, JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Photographs of modular toilet facilities
Appendix B
Plan of a Changing Facility

Page 55

Appendix A

Page 56

Page 57

Appendix B

Page 58

Agenda Item 13
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Cllr Tracey Carter, Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer
Maxine O’Mahony, Executive Director - Strategy and Governance (Monitoring
Officer)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 29 January 2020

Author:

Sarah Barsby Shared Executive Manager Information
Jason Cole. Shared Executive Manager - People and Innovation

Subject

Digital Work Programme Progress update (presentation)

Purpose:

To provide an update, in the form of a presentation, on the progress of the
Council’s Digital Work Programme

Recommendation(s):
1)

That the contents of the report, together with the presentation to be provided at the
meeting, be noted and that comments and feedback be provided.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

In March/April 2019, Cabinet and Council agreed a new set of strategies covering
Customer Access, and Digital and ICT.

1.2

Both strategies are underpinned by a Digital Work Programme aimed at improving
residents’ experience of accessing and receiving Council services while also increasing the
efficiency of the Council’s overall operating arrangements.

1.3

To deliver the Digital Work Programme, which includes corporate priority projects for digital
service transformation and improvement, the Council was clear that it needed to have the
right skills, experience and capacity to not only deliver the programme, but to provide the
necessary rigor and assurance around that delivery.

1.4

As a result, a sum of £331k was agreed, of which £231k was allocated to increase staff
resource to help deliver the programme.

2.0

Recruitment

2.1

Recruitment is now complete, despite some initial challenges, with the following posts
being filled:




2.2

Digital Project Manager (SHDC) – Nikki Makanjuola (Dec 2019)
Web Developer (SHDC) – Emily Gilgan (Sept 2019)
Web Developer (PSPS) – Kieron Boswell (Jan 2020)

As part of a wider review of the CIP (Corporate Improvement and Performance), Digital and
Customer Services, a new Programme Management Office (PMO) has been formed to help

Page 59

oversee and drive the delivery of the Digital Work Programme, along with other key
corporate improvement projects such as Office 365.
3.0

Progress

3.1

With recruitment complete, and under the guidance of the PMO Manager, the team’s
priorities (explained in more detail in the presentation for PMP Members, to follow) have
been focused on:

3.1.2

Remediation
 Identifying project status, owners, target dates, milestones, dependencies and
priorities
 Developing status reports with BRAG (Blue, Red, Amber and Green) ratings
 Identifying performance measures, targets and contribution to strategic goals
 Reviewing data protection compliance

3.2.3

Reporting and monitoring
 Weekly ‘digital pipeline’ work reviews with the Digital Team, to update Project
Manager
 Governance arrangements/structure confirmed
 Fact-checking, so officers and Members can rely on accuracy of reporting
documents

3.2.4

Coordination
 Adjustments made to ICT and Customer Governance Board agenda and
membership
 Digital Project Manager working as ‘gatekeeper’ for all new web/digital requests
 Digital Project Manager joining service project groups, to understand priorities,
need, timescales, etc

3.2.5

Controls
 Templates for services requiring digital support or software approval reviewed and
being trialled
 Project templates have been reviewed and amended
 Documentation aligned with project management best practice

3.2.6

Performance & Risk
 Developing risk management capability
 Identifying and quantifying risks
 Working closely with the CIP (Change, Innovation and Performance) Team to align
with the service improvement work they are planning

4.0

Programme Status
The Digital Work Programme and its current status (with BRAG ratings) will be provided as
part of the presentation to PMP, to follow on the evening of the meeting.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

That the contents of the report and presentation be noted.

Page 60

6.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1

That the progress of the Council’s Digital Work Programme is properly scrutinised.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

7.1

Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues
Delivery of the Digital Work Programme will improve not only the council’s own operating
cost by being more environmentally friendly in the ways we operate, communicate and
deliver services, but we will enable our customers, residents and businesses to enable
them the same benefits through freedom of interaction through modern, digital platforms.

7.2

Constitution and Legal
The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel.

7.3

Corporate Priorities
The Digital Work Programme supports the Council’s key priorities of ensuring that our
services are digital enabled, efficient and meet the expectations of our changing community
whilst not excluding those that are unable to interact in that way; that our staff have the
skills needed to drive the organisation forward and meet the expectations of our changing
communities and how they wish to interact with us; and that residents, businesses, and
partners are kept informed about council services and latest opportunities through clear
and effective communications.

7.4

Risk Management
The Digital Programme’s approach to managing performance and risk is summarised in
point 3.6 of this report, with further detail provided in the presentation to follow.

7.5

Staffing
Information relating to staffing matters is set out in point 2.0 of this report.

8.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED
All wards are potentially affected by the outcomes of the Council’s Digital Work
Programme, and the subsequent service improvement it will help to deliver.

9.0

ACRONYMS
SHDC – South Holland District Council
PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd
PMO – Programme Management Office
PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
CIP Team – Change, Innovation and Performance Team (formerly Corporate Improvement
and Performance Team)

Page 61

BRAG status – Blue/Red/Amber/Green

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Sarah Barsby, Shared Executive Manager Information
07870 157290
Sarah.Barsby@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Name and Post:
Email:

Jason Cole, Shared Executive Manager Information
Sarah.Barsby@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Page 62

Agenda Item 14
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel – 29 January 2020

Author:

Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject:

Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose:

To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion;
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2

Issues

1.2.1

Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for
consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet. This appendix will be updated as new
items are identified.

1.2.2

Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel. The table
shows:






The name of the task group
What it wants to achieve
Key dates
Membership of the task group
When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3

It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2

To do nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 63

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors
with up to date and relevant information. Timelines for various calendar items and
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality &
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management;
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Corporate Priorities

5.1.1

In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes. One of the
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None.

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Christine Morgan
01775 764454
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Appendix B

Work Programme Calendar 2019/20
Task Group Work Programme 2019/20

Page 64

APPENDIX A
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME
ITEMS

Date of Meeting
29 January 2020

Agenda items









18 March 2020







Items to be
allocated when
2020/21 Schedule of
Meetings confirmed





Q3 2019-20 Performance Overview Report – Update on
how the Council is performing for the period October 2019
to December 2019.
Public Toilets Task Group – Response of the Cabinet to
the Task Group’s recommendations
Progress of Digital Work Programme (this underpins the
ICT and Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
2019-2022 and the Customer Access Strategy) (at its
meeting on 12 March 2019, the Cabinet agreed that
progress be reviewed by the Performance Monitoring
Panel as appropriate).
Empty Homes – information around KPIs, and background
information with regard to situations and difficulties
faced.(Ross Bangs/Jason King)
Untidy sites – report detailing how the Authority dealt with
these, and how communication on progress was
undertaken. Following consideration of report, Panel to
decide if a Task Group is required.
Industrial units – report outlining use of industrial units
within the area, and what they were being used for.
Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – further
report following tour
Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and
newly formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided
every six months by the Portfolio Holder for Community
Development. Last discussed at 18/6/19 meeting, arising
from which issues were raised, and the Police Inspector
attended the next meeting on 11 September 2019.
Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task
Group – update on progress of recommendations (last
updates received 18 June 2019 and 11 September 2019).
Economic Development and Inward Investment update –
(last update received 11 September 2019, updated reports
to be on a six-monthly basis, to include an executive
summary alongside the main report).
Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme – Panel
to consider its Work Programme going forward, facilitated
by the Executive Director Commercialisation.
Enforcement – update report on how the Authority is
addressing the various types of enforcement, following the
Authority-wide reorganisation (last update 6/2/18, 31/7/18,
30/1/19 and 12/11/19). Six-monthly – next due May 2020.
Information report on future commercialisation projects

Page 65

Items yet to be
allocated.





(Richard Hodgson/Christine Marshall – last update 13
November 2018).
Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority
managing commercial opportunities? Second report, a
general report around commercialisation.
Cost of running the South Holland Centre
What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost
shunting, and how can this be avoided?

For future consideration




Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).
Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny
****************

To be considered annually:
1) The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final
Report to Council on 21 January 2015. Its first recommendation was:
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites the Performance
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with
Charity Commission Guidance.
A meeting took place on 24 January 2019.
2) Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Tour undertaken 5
September 2019, next tour to be undertaken in September 2020

Page 66

APPENDIX B
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020

Page 67

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve

Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

Proposed date of
report to Panel

Public Open Spaces Task
Group

To be confirmed at first meeting.

12
November
2020

Early 2020

B Alcock
J R Astill
A C Beal
CJTH Brewis
PA Redgate

TBC

Public Toilets Task Group

To review public toilets in the district, looking at
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for
closure and running costs.
To use information gathered to ensure value
for money, good service, and that the right
money was spent in the right place.

6 February
2018

23 April 2018

J R Astill
CJTH Brewis
T A Carter
GK Dark
(Chairman)
PC Foyster

30 January 2019
To Cabinet 12
Feb 2019
Response from
Cabinet to PMP
20 Mar 2019.
Update on
progress PMP
11/9/19.Next
update 29/1/20.

Swimming Pool and
Leisure Centre Contract
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the
contract, by the Authority and the
contractor, particularly with reference to
building maintenance and cleanliness,
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment

1 December
2015

21 January
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016
To Cabinet 8
November 2016
Response and
update on
progress PMP

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve




Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

in the facilities;
To look at the Council’s performance in
monitoring the leisure facilities; and
To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny,
to inform future contracts and contract
monitoring.

Proposed date of
report to Panel
4/2/17, 16/5/17,
7/11/17, 13/11/18,
8/06/19 & 11/9/19.
Next update
18/3/20

Page 68

Sir Halley Stewart Playing
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of
ensuring that the Council remained compliant
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June
2016

Date to be
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Meeting took
place on 24
January 2019.

Effectiveness of CCTV
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current
situation with regard to CCTV and make
recommendations to Cabinet on the way
forward.

6 November
2012

21 November
2012

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson
(Chairman)

Interim report to
PMP 29 January
2013
Interim report to
Cabinet 19
February 2013.
Tracking of
recommendations
to PMP 26 March
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014, and
six-monthly
thereafter.

Terms of Reference – To examine the
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and
prospects for future provision.
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society
on the position regarding CCTV. Performance
information will be available on the new system
in the future, once it becomes operational.
The Task Group will remain in operation to

Name of Task Group

What the Task Group wants to achieve

Date added
to Work
Programme

Date Work
Commenced

Membership
of Task
Group

Proposed date of
report to Panel

25
November
2014

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

To be confirmed

scrutinise performance and will start to do
this once the information becomes
available.

Page 69

The effectiveness of
management companies
set up to undertake
maintenance on
residential estates
throughout the district
past, present and for the
future.

Scope to be confirmed.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Rob Walker, Executive Director - Place

To:

Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 29 January 2020

(Author:

Dee Bedford Community Safety & Enforcement Manager)

Subject

Untidy Sites

Purpose:

To provide an update on untidy sites within the district

Recommendation(s):
1) That the content of the report be noted.
2) That work continues to ensure an agreed process is in place across departments when
responding to reports relating to derelict buildings.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Performance Monitoring Panel on 12 November 2019 requested a report on derelict
commercial buildings within the district.

1.2

Derelict buildings are generally abandoned or neglected by the owner or occupier and, as a
result, can attract crime, anti-social behaviour and rough sleepers. They are often a source
of frustration for local communities and can impact on their quality of life.

1.3

Appendix A details derelict buildings where the council holds records where reports have
been received from residents. It outlines the types of reports that have been received, the
legislation that could be used if appropriate and proportionate and what action is currently
being taken where recent reports have been received.

1.4

Derelict Building guidance

1.5

Officers currently have a cross departmental approach when dealing with derelict buildings.
When a report is received, officers check with other departments to ensure they have the
wider picture. Joint visits may also occur across departments where appropriate to share
knowledge of legislation and to assist with decision making.

1.6

Work is currently underway to ensure officers have a clear process when dealing with
reports relating to derelict buildings.

1.7

To ensure a clear process is in place the guidance will include;


Education – Contact to be made with the owner as soon as the Council are aware
that a commercial property is empty to ensure they understand their legal
responsibilities to prevent issues arising;

Page 71








Enforcement – toolkit being developed detailing all legislation that can be used;
Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) – a referral process to ensure that a CPO has
been considered;
Works in default – Works that can be carried out and recharged to the owner and
the legal standings for this;
Database – E-CINS will be used as the cross departmental system to record all
contact in relation to a derelict building. All reports received will be entered onto the
database to ensure a co-ordinated response can be given to the victim when
updating them on progress with the case;
Communication – there are 2 areas being reviewed; communicating the reporting
channels to residents so that reports can be recorded and investigated as quickly as
possible and an improved feedback method to the victim and to ward members.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Do nothing

2.2

Note the content of the report

2.3

That work continues to ensure an agreed process is in place across departments when
responding to reports relating to derelict buildings

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted and that work continues to
ensure an agreed process is in place across departments when responding to reports
relating to derelict buildings.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The report provides members with an update on the reports received in relation to derelict
commercial buildings and the current action being taken.

4.2

Members will have assurance that enforcement action is being taken appropriately and that
resident and community concerns are being addressed.

4.3

It updates members on work in progress to help ensure a consistent approach.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Constitutional & Legal

Page 72

5.1.1

There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing,
Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions.
The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

5.2

Corporate Priorities

5.2.1

The work around derelict buildings supports the following council priorities:
 Your Place
 Your Health and Wellbeing
 Your Council

5.3

Crime and Disorder

5.3.1

Working with the owners and taking proportionate enforcement action is a key part of
community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns

5.4

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.5.1

It should be noted that surveillance techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8
of the Human Rights Act which covers right to privacy. Judicial and quasi-judicial action is
also subject to Article 6 – right to a fair trial.

5.5

Health & Wellbeing

5.5.1

Ensuring appropriate action is taken with regards to derelict buildings impacts on the health
and well-being of local communities.

5.6

Financial

5.6.1

There are no direct implications for this report however enforcement action can result in
financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

CPO – Compulsory Purchase Order

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:
Key Decision:

None

Dee Bedford Community Safety & Enforcement Manager
dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk
N

Page 73

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to both a Mandatory and Discretionary Services
Confidential Appendix A attached to this report:
(Please note that the following appendix is not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 6
(Information which reveals that the authority proposes: a) to give under any enactment a
notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or b) to make an
order or direction under any enactment))
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Derelict Buildings

Page 74

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 18

This page is intentionally left blank

